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COMMISSIONER: Good morning everybody is Professor Cartwright, Mr Lamb and Dr Berg 
present? 
MR HATHORN: Commissioners we’ve had a request from Ms Mtwana to see whether she can 
go first because she’s not going to be available later in the morning and unless there’s any 
objection – between the parties ourselves we’re happy for the order to be swapped. 
COMMISSIONER: The only question I have is whether the first three witnesses have the ability 
to wait till later. 
MR HATHORN: Yes they do. 
COMMISSIONER: Okay fine.  Ms Mtwana, good morning again Ms Mtwana and welcome 
once again to the proceedings of the Commission, thank you also for the report that you’ve 
made available to us. Once again I remind you that the proceedings of the Commission are in 
public and that your name and testimony may be made public, you have no objection to that? 
MS MTWANA: No objection. 
COMMISSIONER: May I put you under oath once again. 
NONTUTHUZELO MTWANA (sworn states) 
COMMISSIONER: Who is leading this witness? 
MS MAYOSI: I am Madam Chair. 
COMMISSIONER: Ms Mayosi. 
EXAMINATION BY MS MAYOSI 
MS MAYOSI: Ms Mtwana you gave evidence earlier to the Commission relating to the state of 
play in Khayelitsha about CPFs, street committees and neighbourhood watches is that right? 
MS MTWANA: That is correct. 
MS MAYOSI: In this second phase of hearings you have given a report where you propose 
certain recommendations to be adopted by the Commission in relation to those areas is that 
right? 
MS MTWANA: That is correct ma’am. 
MS MAYOSI: You also submitted your curriculum vitae do you confirm the correctness of the 
contents of your CV? 
MS MTWANA: Yes I do. 
MS MAYOSI: Let’s discuss the report that you submitted in this second phase and in particular 
your recommendations but before we go into the recommendations you say in your report you 
identify a number of things which in your view are demonstrated by the evidence that has been 
led at the Commission so far.  One of the things that you say that the evidence shows is that 
there is a lack of a common understanding of the Khayelitsha social control measures leading 
to the police being perceived in a certain negative aspect, what do you mean by that can you 



just explain what you mean when you say there’s a lack of common understanding of the 
social control measures, what are those social control measures and who is it, who are the 
parties that don’t have an understanding? 
MS MTWANA: Okay, the meaning of this statement is that when it comes to the general 
community structures there are so many structures that are claiming a leadership and in this 
way you find that SAPS will have communicated with one component and be seen by another 
component as not having been consultative regarding crime and general safety matters. An 
example of this in Khayelitsha we’ve got a structure that is encompassing all sectors if I may 
say so, the Khayelitsha Development Forum that gets consulted with and would give blessings 
for interventions and give direction and everybody will be working with that.  When it comes to 
general crime and general community safety issues the civil structures claim that they have to 
be the ones that get consulted and that creates a lot of tensions and that creates a lot of 
understanding as to who should be the key focal point for engaging with communities.  That is 
basically what we mean as the street committees are taken as members of the civic 
organisations and are closer to the people as they are representing the ordinary residents they 
also claim a space in terms of general consultation and police visibility, they want people that 
account to them also that is in that context that we are saying this. 
MS MAYOSI: Then of course there are neighbourhood watches and also the CPFs. 
MS MTWANA: Yes there are different structures like the CPF which is working closely with the 
police as well as neighbourhood watches, not all of them working with the CPFs but generally 
it is a trend that neighbourhood watches will be registered, recognised and supported by the 
CPF of that police precinct. 
MS MAYOSI: What is your view of the working relationship between all of these groups on 
issues of safety, all of those groups being the KDFs, CPFs, neighbourhood watches, street 
committees, what is their working relationship on the specific issues of community safety? 
MS MTWANA: What I can safely say is at different times and depending on the emerging 
dynamics the working relationships will be sound in the sense that whoever convenes 
engagement towards consultation on what needs to be done community structures will be 
gathered together in one room where decisions are taken.  But most of the time in my 
experience we find that the relationships are not so sound to such an extent that you will find 
some forums within a specific policing precinct, within a specific ward challenging each other 
and also undermining each other in terms of who has got authority of making decisions, who 
has got authority of taking up issues, who should be the representative of the community.  So it 
is not a completely broken relationship at times it is smooth and sound, at times it is 
problematic and filled with a lot of challenges. 
MS MAYOSI: So it’s not a consistent cooperative working relationship between these groups 
on issues of safety. 
MS MTWANA: In my experience and my exposure to issues that is so. 
COMMISSIONER: Could I ask on that Ms Mtwana whether the situation has been like this for 
a long time whether it goes through different troughs or it gets worse at time and gets better 
and is it a matter of political contestation that informs this or not? 
MS MTWANA: This has been happening over a period of time from the very first broad or 
greater Khayelitsha community police forum which was started with representatives from all 
sectors there was smooth running.  Then with the evolving of programs within the government 
sectors as well as other NGOs that have been providing services there has been a lot of 
contestation.  From where I’m sitting and from where I’m coming from the contestation has 



been happening with the belief that if you are involved in policing issues there is bound to be 
something that one could be getting and receiving and then the contestation is coming from 
that misinformation that if you volunteer as a CPF there is something that you are gaining from 
the police.  If you are volunteering as a neighbourhood watch there has been the expectation 
that government needs to pay you for that so the interpretation of what is required from 
community volunteers, from the community policing forum has created those tensions and for 
me it happens at different times.  Sometimes when there is enough of whatever the 
communities can benefit you will find that a lot of contestation there because who chooses 
whom and who gets chosen creates a lot of tension.  But if it’s something like a community 
event where there is a common message and the focus is common you find everybody 
working in a united manner. 
COMMISSIONER: You haven’t mentioned the role of counsellors who effectively are the 
democratic representatives of the people of Khayelitsha how do they fit into this? 
MS MTWANA: I will speak on the area where we have been putting a lot of effort as VPUU and 
we have found that working with the ward councillor gives a lot of substance because as an 
elected leader he has got authority at times of calling meeting and of getting everybody 
together.  We have found that with the complete support of the counsellor work on the ground 
happens in a harmonious way but that is not happening all the time as different entities will be 
not coming to the party based on whatever they believe in at that particular point in time.  But 
we have found working with the community councillors gives substance to interventions with 
the authority that he brings as well as his support as an elected representative. 
COMMISSIONER: To the extent that the Commission would be thinking that it needs to make 
recommendations around multi-sectoral involvement in specific issues or more broadly should, 
as a result of what you are saying, the focus of those multi-sectoral initiatives be focused on 
local government structures and particularly on councillors in the sub-councils that are here in 
Khayelitsha.  Is that your view or is that likely to be strategically contested? 
MS MTWANA: In our view as VPUU and personally I believe that if all initiatives are led at a 
ward level by the ward councillor and the legal structures you will find that the coordination is, 
an integration will be easy to manage.  But for us the difficulty is that within one police precinct 
you will be finding different wards that have got their own different dynamics but it is something 
that one can look at as something that can be encouraged. If ward councillors play a leading 
role due to their legal mandate I think coordination and integration can happen from all the 
stakeholders that have to deliver services to the community. 
MS MAYOSI: In your report you mention and list various issues which you say the Commission 
should take cognisance of in making recommendations regarding the issues of community 
policing.  It is correct that these various things that this Commission must consider involve a 
number of role players isn’t that right such as the Department of Community Safety, the City of 
Cape Town and others is that right/ 
MS MTWANA: That is correct. 
MS MAYOSI: You mention for example that one of these considerations being the experiences 
of police and community relations, community policing in other similar environments are there 
any similar environments that you can mention for the Commission to consider? 
MS MTWANA: In my line of work we have been attending different seminars, different training 
workshops, information sessions where experts have been sharing different experiences from 
different communities, different countries. We have recently in the recent years had a 
conversation with a representative that was coming from Kenya sharing the type of technology 



that they have been using in terms of sharing information on risks and threats that are affecting 
the communities and also using the same technology to report on what is happening to the law 
enforcement agencies.  We were quite enthusiastic in actually looking at such models being 
promoted on how to improve communication between communities and the law enforcement 
agencies, more especially SAPS to such an extent that one could look at which organisation 
can put in the resources in order to try those particular methodologies.  I believe that there are 
experts in this room who have been working on this that know more but through reading, 
through listening to what is said by other countries, by other communities, we find that this is 
something that can be explored looking at what can be tailor-made to fit in the Khayelitsha 
context. 
MS MAYOSI: You also say that in making its recommendations this Commission should 
consider issues such as the culture of violence that is prevalent in some communities where 
violence is used as a form of expression.  Now what could be done in relation to that, what 
recommendations could be made about that and what is SAPS’ role around changing that 
culture? 
MS MTWANA: The recommendation here would be that SAPS are under discussion at this 
particular moment should proactively take on the responsibility of facilitating ongoing 
awareness-raising as well as education on the legal frameworks of what is actually acceptable 
or unacceptable in terms of the law so that people of the community know what they should 
not be doing.  The second level also which has worked in another context where SAPS 
facilitated the cooperation of different stakeholders, for example members from the faith-based 
organisations that were concentrating more on moral regeneration that would be decreasing 
the notion of using violence as a form of expression that worked in that context in 2008.  We 
believe that if SAPS could facilitate engagement with those stakeholders or sectors within 
community the message can continuously reach the ordinary residents in order to change this 
culture of violence. 
COMMISSIONER: On that again Ms Mtwana one of the difficulties is whether this is a SAPS 
function or whether this is a function for somebody else, what is your thinking about that? 
MS MTWANA: For me it is not necessarily a SAPS function it should be a function undertaken 
by other sectors that are delivering services.  The role of civil society organisations in getting 
these messages across to the community needs to be highlighted and the role that SAPS 
would be playing is to try and strengthen those particular structures or initiatives in order to 
enhance its community relations function. It is not their sole responsibility nor their major 
responsibility but it is one of the methods that SAPS can use to enhance that relationship 
between itself and the community. 
MS MAYOSI: You also say in your report that one of the issues for consideration by this 
Commission in making recommendations is the issue of ensuring the protection of 
whistleblowers from the community.  Various officers from SAPS have spoken about the 
difficulty of securing informers as part of getting good intelligence on crime in the community, 
the fear of members of the community of being called impimpies and so on.  Are you alluding 
to that, can you tell the Commission more about that issue and how whistleblowers could be, 
the protection of whistleblowers could be ensured?  That seems to me to be an important issue 
in rebuilding the trust between the police and the community. 
MS MTWANA: From the work that we have been doing and the relationship that we have been 
having with the neighbourhood watches and some components of these sub-forums where 
they have been having difficulty in getting to report on criminals that they know of within the 



communities.  They have always been reporting that if you report to the police that so-and-so 
is dealing in drugs – as an example – those people would accuse them saying that we have 
been informed by the police that you have informed on us.  What we have been trying to 
explore and looking at what could work best we found that if we could encourage and try and 
get people submitting, making written submissions, written reports by putting them in 
designated information boxes at police stations that will be acted on, if we could encourage 
that without revealing one’s identity maybe that can encourage the rate of reporting of cases 
that are happening or incidents that are happening within the communities.  The current fear 
right now is to be known but being known is quite dangerous but if people can be given that 
opportunity of reporting those critical cases. 
 The other side that requires protection here is that if one needs to be taking the report 
for further investigation one would be needing evidence and one would be needing people to 
testify then it becomes a problem but somehow it needs to be looked at as to how to 
encourage random reporting as well as protecting those that can come forward and bring 
evidence where it is needed. 
COMMISSIONER: We’ve had some evidence and comments particularly from SAPS on a 
witness protection program but it does seem as if the witness protection program is not really 
geared for this kind of a problem.  Under that program people are taken out of their 
communities and moved elsewhere, given fresh identities potentially or taken for a period of 
time really this is a matter about a sense of vulnerability in the community as well as fear that 
SAPS won’t keep the information confidential but particularly when it comes to a court case 
about being a public witness.  Have you any thoughts on that it’s clear that the witness 
protection program is not really going to address this problem.  The idea of anonymous which 
is what you’re suggesting as I understand it, a kind of anonymous report either directly to 
SAPS or to SAPS via an organisation like the VPUU may assist SAPS at least in terms of 
understanding what’s happening but it’s not going to be part of a prosecution program because 
they’re going to have to have identified witnesses.  How do you see this actually working, do 
you have more detail to your suggestions? 
MS MTWANA: I do not have an answer to that, looking at what is generally happening 
regarding the witness protection and all that it is a challenge and it is something that needs to 
be looked into.  If one is looking at reporting with the aim of alerting SAPS of what is 
happening there the anonymous information boxes can work to give an idea of what is 
happening on the ground.  But if one needs to be looking at how to deal with the actual crime 
incidence and having the perpetrators and the culprits punished by the law, the anonymous 
reports will not be serving that purpose.  It is something that other expects can actually start 
look at what can be done that can encourage the revelation of the actual culprit so that they 
can be punished in front of the law. 
MS MAYOSI: Going to your recommendations one of the recommendations you make is that 
that of concluding service level agreements between the police and various community bodies 
at different levels, including street committees.  Can you tell the Commission more about that 
recommendation, what would be the core terms of such service level agreements and what 
would they be regulating? 
MS MTWANA: Okay, we have found as the organisation that verbal commitments are not 
taking us anywhere they are not binding where one service provider will be committing to 
providing a particular service as identified by that grouping. We have got to a stage where we 
worked with other organisations in developing what needs to be contained in a safety plan that 



has to be implemented and in that, after having conducted the risk assessments by experts, 
here are specific recommendations that will be saying, for example, that there needs to be 
quick response to reports by community in terms of crime that is committed.  Then in that 
particular case one would be saying the neighbourhood watch coordinators need to make sure 
that they communicate with the sector commander of that particular police precinct and then 
the decision that is taken will be clearly identifying roles that are specific for SAPS, that are 
specific for Metro police, that are specific for community structures like the CPF.  If they are 
clearly stated then it is a binding agreement by which each service provider will be measured 
in terms of delivering on the commitment.  It clearly states the different roles and 
responsibilities and that document is used as a reporting tool to report on progress made, 
highlight challenges faced and then the group, all the service providers looking at alternatives 
to facilitate the delivery of that particular commitment by that service provider. 
COMMISSIONER: There are similarities with this to a proposal that was raised in a recent UK 
policing report which talked about a local neighbourhood commitment, a public local 
neighbourhood commitment which would include response times, obligations of courtesy, 
feedback – undertakings of feedback on certain periods of time is there any reason why it 
shouldn’t be formulated in that way?  What worries me a little bit about the service level 
agreement is it’s a sort of very contractual slightly commercial feel whereas really what we’re 
talking about here is civic accountability.  Obviously what the commitment is needs to be 
determined with the CPF, in other words what is a reasonable and practicable demand of 
SAPS, what can SAPS undertake.  We know that SAPS already operates within a national 
framework of for example response times which it measures and determines and it seems that 
there would be no reason why that couldn’t be determined on a local level, particularly if there 
are particular issues about local environmental challenges which may mean that they might 
say we can’t actually meet the national response time but we will add two minutes on or 
whatever.  But that they could be publicised and put up in the community service centre, could 
be monitored by the CPF for compliance so it’s quite a similar idea but it’s formulating it more 
as a commitment rather than a service level agreement which is really just a title I suppose.  
Am I right in thinking that that’s a very similar sort of suggestion? 
MS MTWANA: Yes I do agree Your Honour. 
COMMISSIONER: Are you aware of this happening anywhere across the metropolitan area or 
elsewhere that SAPS has made these kind of local undertakings to local communities about 
both response times, duties of feedback, also importantly issues of courtesy and respect for 
members of the public in their dealings with SAPS? 
MS MTWANA: Really Your Honour I’m not aware of the other initiatives what I’m bringing here 
is what we are trying to pilot within the Harare police precinct which is shaping up very well and 
it is making some progress in terms of the deliverables that are contained in that document. 
COMMISSIONER: Right and that’s your MOU, that’s the VPUU MOU with Harare rather than 
through the CPF am I right it’s a VPUU memorandum of understanding or a service level 
agreement? 
MS MTWANA: The MOUs by VPUU are between VPUU and the Department of Community 
Safety on the strengthening of the CPFs.  The second level is that of the MOU which we call 
an agreement between VPUU and the CPF in assisting the delivery of specifics in terms of 
ensuring the general community safety within the police precinct. 
COMMISSIONER: And the service level agreements you’re talking about who is that between? 
MS MTWANA: That has been, we’re still facilitating that as a trial run taken from the 



recommendations of the Security Technical Services of the City of Cape Town that guided us 
in terms of the risk assessment that has been conducted by them on a pilot area which is a 
smaller area within Harare where they highlighted to do lists and then that also highlighted who 
the relevant service providers could be.  They highlighted those of SAPS, Metro police, law 
enforcement, community policing form, ordinary community members that are represented by 
the CPF.  It is still having its teething problems but it is moving towards the right direction as it 
is eliciting a lot of interventions that bring about some improvement. 
COMMISSIONER: Is that in a document form? 
MS MTWANA: Yes we do have them. 
COMMISSIONER: Is that something we’ve seen it doesn’t ring a bell with me, I know we talked 
when you were here the last time about the memorandum of understandings but I don’t recall 
service level agreement.  Ms Bawa is much more on top of this than me suggests no. 
MS MTWANA: No. 
COMMISSIONER: It would be very helpful for us because it is very much the sort of thing 
we’ve been talking about around trying to create measurements for SAPS which are externally 
focused, i.e. looking at how SAPS is perceived by the community in its performance, to be part 
of measurements within SAPS for its performance rather than only having internally focused 
measurement systems.  So it would be very helpful to us to have a look at that particularly if it’s 
been piloted already or developed already in Khayelitsha. 
MS MTWANA: Yes that can be provided. 
COMMISSIONER: Thank you. 
MS MAYOSI: One of the recommendations you make Ms Mtwana is that of the police 
appointing a designated officer to participate in meetings that the CPFs are contracted to 
organise.  How does this currently play out do you mean to say that there isn’t a designated 
person from SAPS to attend these meetings and give feedback or what does that 
recommendation relate to and what’s the position at the moment? 
MS MTWANA: With the CPFs required to complete an EPP (extended public partnership) 
document by the Department of Community Safety we have found that as part of our 
engagements with them that having a designated officer assisting the CPFs yields a very 
professional – I’ll call it professional if I’m allowed to do that – an acceptable report that 
showcases what is actually happening within the station.  The example of Lingelethu West 
police station where the designated officer is the social crime prevention responsible person 
they are doing it quite well.  Our recommendation is that if that could be replicated in the other 
stations to ensure that what is being produced by the CPF is something that is well organised 
and well articulated and that can be easily shared between the CPF and the SAPS 
management in an amicable manner so that there can be an improvement in terms of the 
performance of the CPF as well as some of the issues highlighted from the side of the police. 
COMMISSIONER: You’re saying that at Lingelethu West the station commander has 
appointed the social crime prevention officer to be a liaison person between the, what you’re 
mentioning in paragraph 8 of your report in relation to the EPP agreement.  What sort of a 
rank, I don’t think it’s inappropriate Mr Arendse to ask for the name of this officer, would that be 
alright? 
MR ARENDSE: (Off mic) 
COMMISSIONER: Do you know the name of the officer concerned? 
MS MTWANA: It’s Constable Nyalambisa. 
COMMISSIONER: So that is a uniformed officer? 



MS MTWANA: Yes. 
COMMISSIONER: Who is responsible for doing this? 
MS MTWANA: Yes and for general social crime prevention. 
COMMISSIONER: Okay thank you. 
MS MAYOSI: You talk about the issue of, you said that there should be alignment between 
SAPS block boundaries and established street committee area boundaries can you just 
explain to the Commission what you mean by that recommendation?  What is the current 
position, what problems does it solve and what is your actual proposal in that regard? 
MS MTWANA: The current SAPS boundaries at community level, I will talk about the 
geographical boundaries in the setting up of the different sectors. The biggest sector covers 
different smaller areas, I will make an example of Harare.  Harare Sector 1 is made up 
Monwabisi Park, an area called Jabavu in terms of the civic organisations, as well as Michael 
Maphongwana.  In the actual engagements with the communities the representation in the 
forum tends to be biased because the smaller areas get overshadowed in terms of having their 
voice.  The civic structures are not in line with that they continue having their own civic 
boundaries.  What we are saying is that the sector boundaries have been made through 
decisions taken informed by certain information that was considered.  But for us we are saying 
within the bigger framework, the bigger boundary there needs to be smaller policing blocks that 
will be in line with the civic boundaries.  Currently you will find that area committees are made 
up of different street committees, if SAPS could also make sub-sectors or sub-areas in line 
with that and then for us from our side that could make communication quite easy and making 
the relationship within SAPS quite easy because they’ll be communicating with people at very 
local, local level. 
MS MAYOSI: Can you explain this, you talk about training of police reservists and then you 
mention the voluntary auxiliary law enforcement officers what is that program? 
MS MTWANA: Okay, the police reservists have been trained from the side of SAPS and we 
have always previously been requested to recommend neighbourhood members that do 
qualify in terms of the criteria set to register for that particular training. We have had people 
that we have been dealing with that have been absorbed as police reservists.  What we are 
currently engaged with through the initiative of the City of Cape Town law enforcement 
department within in the Metro police there is a program where neighbourhood watches with 
between Grade 10 and 12 are recruited to attend training which is initially called “peace 
officers” that get advanced for them to be given the skills necessary for them to work with the 
employed and the official law enforcement officers.  This particular program is found to be 
quite useful because it will be having more community trained people, even if they are not 
employed, but they will be having the necessary skills to identify those risks and threats that 
are happening at community level and know what route to take.  So the utilisation of the 
reservists, both the auxiliary law enforcement officers and police reservists at community level, 
can somehow assist with the human resources for SAPS at community level. 
MS MAYOSI: Your recommendations involve a lot of training which I would imagine would 
have to happen on a continuing basis, training and retraining.  It involves role players such as 
VPUU and other organisations that would be playing a supportive role in terms of capacitating 
various community structures.  Who probably should fund those organisations in order to make 
sure that your recommendations can in fact be implemented and they are supported 
appropriately? 
MS MTWANA: What we would recommend is that as the situation is at this point in time, 



Department of Community Safety and the Directorate of Safety and Security are training 
neighbourhood watches and VPUU is facilitating some of the programs.  The ultimate way of 
doing things would be that in terms of looking at safety generally that would include other line 
departments locally and provincially.  If we are talking about water and sanitation whichever 
line department that is dealing with that would have to incorporate a training component in 
order to assist the community members in identifying and repairing whatever needs to be 
repaired at community level.  So at the end of the day all line departments will have to take 
responsibility by having a dedicated training budget for community structures to assist them in 
performing some of their services that are required. 
MS MAYOSI: In circumstances such as those which have played themselves out in the 
Commission where the community of Khayelitsha are complaining of a breakdown in trust 
between them and the police how can this trust be repaired? Besides the recommendations 
you’ve made in your report in your view do you believe that this trust can in fact be repaired 
and what crisp recommendations would you have, both for the community and the police, in 
terms of beginning to repair that trust? 
MS MTWANA: For us the trust can be rebuilt, the trust can be sustainable if we are looking at 
SAPS after having reached a decision on a certain issue could proactively be the one that calls 
the community and its structures.  An example of that is the imbizos that SAPS calls where 
communities are given an opportunity to raise the issues of concern, that model does work but 
it needs to be further bolstered up with SAPS, rather than listening to complaints only, also 
taking the opportunity of reporting back on their achievements that they have made. I always 
make an example of what I’ve seen at the Mitchell’s Plain town centre police station where 
there is a TV monitor that every minute there is news that is splashed in that particular screen 
starting from who is the station commission, who are the sector commanders going on to the 
number of cases reported, number of prosecutions and generally reporting on what is 
happening and also on wanted criminals and all that.  I have found that to be something that 
could be promoted so that if it could happen at police station level at strategic points where 
notice boards could be erected where police feed in information that will be – giving 
information on what is actually happening within a police precinct. 
MS MAYOSI: So you say from the police side accountability would go a long way to bolstering 
or rebuilding the trust? 
MS MAYOSI: Yes they could add on to the current methods they are using. 
MS MAYOSI: But it’s a two-way process, from the community side? 
MS MTWANA: The community also needs to assist in sharing the information, those people in 
elected positions that have a responsibility of building the relationship between SAPS and the 
community need also to take responsibility of continuously or on a regular basis giving 
feedback on what the police are experiencing, the achievements, the challenges as well as 
what is expected from the side of the community.  It is a two-way street it is not exclusively the 
community’s responsibility or SAPS’ responsibility but it needs to be built into a joint effort and 
joint interventions.  In that way the trust will be built because people will be hearing directly 
from the police as well as the elected structures that this is what is being done in terms of 
addressing the crime issues that are affecting the communities. 
MS MAYOSI: I have no further questions. 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MS MAYOSI 
COMMISSIONER: Thank you Ms Mayosi.  I just wanted to announce that Ms Bawa has put 
together a useful timetable for this morning just so people know where we stand.  Advocate 



Sidaki will have 15 minutes to put questions to Ms Mtwana then Mr Arendse will have 15 
minutes and then you’ll have five minutes in reply Ms Mayosi so that will take us to 10:20.  
Then Professor Cartwright’s team will have evidence in chief from 10:20 to 11 o’clock and then 
Advocate Sidaki will have 15 minutes from 11 to 11:15 and then Mr Arendse from 11:15 to 
11:30 and then five minutes in reply.  That will take us to 11:35 and we’ll take the morning tea 
adjournment does that sound adequate.  Advocate Sidaki?  Sorry go ahead Advocate Pikoli. 
MR PIKOLI:  Just before Advocate Sidaki just on the last point raised by Advocate Mayosi 
what’s your view on the effectiveness of the CPFs in carrying out their oversight responsibility 
in terms of the Act? 
MS MTWANA: We have had challenges in terms of the functioning of the CPFs and we have 
jointly worked with the Department of Community Safety in developing a program for the 
capacity building for the CPFs.  The first module that has been designed by the Department of 
Community Safety has been the understanding of the legal obligations for the CPFs.  We are 
seeing a shift now in their functioning with the understanding of what is required for them 
where we’re talking about improved communication the CPFs now are being assisted in 
designing a program of improving communication between SAPS and the community and 
between them as the elected body and the general community.  There have been challenges 
in terms of their functioning but currently there is work being done to build that capacity.  If they 
well informed of their obligations they are given the necessary support whether to training or 
through equipping them to do the work I think and believe strongly that they can be a very 
useful resource if they can get the understanding also committing themselves to performing 
that which is legally prescribed. 
MR PIKOLI: (Indistinct) on section 18 of the Police Act do you think it is desirable for 
community structures to conduct patrols of their areas with a view perhaps of apprehending 
suspects? 
MS MTWANA: For me the community structures, the community members can be given the 
space to actually participate in patrolling their own streets and areas but do not have the rights 
of actually arresting people.  That is where we are coming from as to saying that we can 
encourage communities to set up neighbourhood watches or patrollers within their areas but 
they need to be informed by SAPS and law enforcement agencies regarding what is it that they 
need to be looking at.  The other way of actually encouraging the participation of the 
communities themselves is that it is not necessarily that people should be patrolling and 
running after the criminals that they see but they could participate in terms of crime prevention 
and assisting police through reporting what is broken, through looking at what is affecting the 
general safety and the concentration for them should be that of promoting general community 
safety that will be leading to the decreasing of criminal incidents that are happening there.  So 
for us they are a necessary resource that can patrol but the concentration and focus should 
differ at different points in time. For those of actually monitoring and looking at criminal 
incidents and all that they need to be a resource that will be deployed by the police.  
Communities from my side should rather concentrate on reducing opportunities for crime to be 
committed by reporting whatever is happening and then police using them in apprehending 
those that are affecting their neighbourhoods and streets, that is how I can just – ja. 
COMMISSIONER: Advocate Sidaki? 
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR SIDAKI 
MR SIDAKI:  Thank you Madam Chair.  Ma’am you talk about the police needing to rebuild the 
trust with the community of Khayelitsha and key to rebuilding the trust with the community is 



actually reaching out to all sectors of the community would you agree? 
MS MTWANA: Yes I do agree. 
MR SIDAKI: Because Ms Vetten who testified yesterday actually warned that the term 
“community” can be a very misleading one and it’s very important for the police to work harder 
to actually zoom into who are the various elements that make up a community.  Is that not so 
you don’t just go to certain people in the area and then just call them representatives of the 
community? 
MS MTWANA: For me the definition of community is quite a difficult one and I agree that one 
cannot say this is the best definition that one can put in and also using sectors you know has 
got different meanings for different people.  But what I would say is that when looking at 
general community members or residents or citizenry and looking at their wellbeing there 
would be different issues that one needs to be looking into to ensure a citizen’s wellbeing.  If 
we are talking about safety one would start looking at who is affected by crime in the area. You 
will find that different people, all residents are affected and then in terms of interventions who 
could be the right people or an appropriate person to engage with.   

From where I am is that one would need to be looking at, if we are allowed to use 
sectors, looking at the different components.  If we are talking about behavioural and attitudinal 
issues one would start looking at what is it that that particular citizen believes in. In more areas 
you would find that they hold high respect for faith-based leaders or religious leaders for lack of 
a better word and then you would have consultations with those particular groupings.  Then 
when it comes to general protection of the neighbourhoods you would find that businesses are 
affected by robbery, by housebreaking, by all sorts of crimes that are happening there. 
Because they are affected directly or indirectly they have to be a sector that has to be engaged 
with and so on and so on depending on what could be an acceptable model.  But to have 
representatives, not necessarily people like myself, who will come up and say that I’m 
representing NGOs whereas I am not actually representing them but it should be based issue-
per-issue will identify who the correct stakeholders should be on what they experience and 
what they can offer in return towards interventions and solutions. 
MR SIDAKI: And also being receptive to new organisations that crop up in the community, 
certainly the evidence was whereas the more established organisations in Khayelitsha were 
recognised as representing the community, we’ve heard a lot of evidence from especially 
members of the various organisations that form part of the Social Justice Coalition who have 
said over and over they’ve battled to be recognised by the authorities they get dismissed as 
youngsters so it becomes important to reach out to new organisations and new formations that 
crop up in the community. 
MS MTWANA: In terms of the formation of the forums that are dealing with general community 
safety it is quite important that it be an open forum.  Having said that it needs to be receptive to 
every organisation that aspires to delivering a service, there is nobody who should be excluded 
from engagement.  Having said that one needs to look at which levels is each emerging 
organisation best suited to participate.  If it is dealing with localised issues the strength of that 
organisation would be best placed and suited at a local forum or sub-forum level. At the 
strategic level all organisations need to be representative because they bring value and have a 
role to play so it has to be cutting across from strategic level to a localised level.  It should be 
an open process that is accommodative for everybody. 
MR SIDAKI: Even further down to individual level certainly through the use of other media, 
forums like radio, Radio Zibonele having the station commander of a police station talking on 



Radio Zibonele they would go beyond the structures or the confines of organisations and 
representatives to the various individuals of Khayelitsha. 
MS MTWANA: For me I believe in the saying that “crime is everybody’s concern and safety is 
everybody’s responsibility” so issues pertaining to crime and safety are to be dealt with by 
including everybody who has a role to play.  Whatever contribution that an individual can bring 
will bring about a change in the status quo within that particular neighbourhood or environment 
or community for lack of a better word. 
MR SIDAKI: I’m not sure if you had sight of a report that was presented to the Commission 
authored by one Barbara Holtman.  It talks about envisioning workshops for local safety plans 
and I wanted your take on that because it talks about bringing together various sectors of the 
community to develop a local safety plan, what are your views on safety plans? 
MS MTWANA: Fortunately we have had the opportunity to of having the model as presented 
by Ms Holtman and that is the route that we are all using in terms of designing local safety 
plans. When we are looking at the cycle of violence and the cycle that you need to look at 
when designing interventions that has been proved to be a workable model which we have to 
be promoting and implementing at all levels.  It is a model that has been accepted by my 
organisation and which is currently influencing some of the issues that get picked up when 
looking at the designing of a safety plan.  It is one of the most favoured tools that I’ve come 
across. 
MR SIDAKI: Certainly in your report you talk about the need for Khayelitsha police to go out 
and look for best practices elsewhere in similar placed communities.  For instance in that 
regard the Commission has obtained a report drafted by a retired Brigadier Pieter Myburgh 
who used to be a station commander of Galashiwe in Kimberley and he also talks about the 
importance of developing local safety plans and he sets out in his affidavit how it should be 
done.  My question to you is would you encourage the Khayelitsha police to actually start going 
out there and looking for best practices and liaising with other station commanders elsewhere 
who could provide workable solutions? 
MS MTWANA: Yes I would and I just want to add that I found that SAPS in Harare have 
started towards breaking down the bigger sectors into smaller areas and all that and are 
aspiring to that particular approach, i is something that can be encouraged and can be worked 
on. 
MR SIDAKI: Certainly the issue of gang violence in Khayelitsha, we haven’t heard any 
evidence as to what the police in Khayelitsha plan to go about tackling it and certainly it would 
be something where the local police could go out and look for best practices elsewhere as to 
how they’re going to deal with it efficiently and effectively. 
MS MTWANA: Currently I’m not involved in direct gang interventions and the organisation is 
working as part of a coordinated multi-stakeholder forum that is facilitated by the Department 
of Community Safety to work at interventions and all that.  For me it is something that we all 
need to get together and look at what could work in dealing with what the youth gangs are 
presenting to the community.  At different points you will find integrated and coordinated 
interventions where you will be finding police, Metro police, other government departments, 
social development working together in dealing with the incidents that are emerging and you 
will see a shift in the patterns of these youth gangs.  So it is something that needs to be looked 
into and coming up with an approach that can have all role players working together towards 
the eradication of this particular challenge. 
MR SIDAKI: Thank ma’am, thank you Madam Chair. 



NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MR SIDAKI 
COMMISSIONER: Thanks Advocate Sidaki.  Advocate Arendse? 
MR ARENDSE: Thank you Madam Chair.  Madam Chair may I just start off with a question or 
asking something which is not related to Ms Mtwana’s recommendations but did we get a 
response from Chris Giles about the funding of the VPUU you will recall that I asked that 
question. 
COMMISSIONER: I don’t think we did Advocate Arendse just remind the precise tone of your 
question what did you want to know? 
MR ARENDSE: Well I was cross-examining or asking questions of Mr Giles and I asked him 
because I think initially they – and I’m just looking at his affidavit – initially they were funded 
from several including the German Development Bank. 
COMMISSIONER: That’s right. 
MR ARENDSE: But I think that funding had been discontinued and I then asked him, I think I 
was just examining or testing whether they have any relationship with the City and/or with 
DOCS. 
COMMISSIONER: I’m fairly sure they do have a relationship with the City, Ms Mtwana can you 
answer any of these questions? 
MS MTWANA: Your Honour it would not be correct for me to answer that question but the 
project team leader Michael Krauser who is the representative who was representing the 
German side of the funding as well as Alistair Graham the City project manager are prepared if 
called upon to come and share the issues around funding as well as the agreements that they 
are having. I am not in a position to provide that information. 
COMMISSIONER: Thank you, I think at this stage Mr Arendse we should probably just ask for 
a document I don’t think you need to have them here is that right we’re going to be a bit short 
of time on that. 
MR ARENDSE: No I don’t want that to delay I think that request is outstanding. 
COMMISSIONER: Yes and it’s an important question around sustainability as well.  Ms Mayosi 
could you ensure that that could be provided ASAP? 
MS MAYOSI: I will do that Madam Chair. 
COMMISSIONER: Thank you very much.  Go ahead Advocate Arendse. 
CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR ARENDSE 
MR ARENDSE: Thank you.  Ms Mtwana you yourself you’re employed by the City of Cape 
Town isn’t it? 
MS MTWANA: Yes. 
MR ARENDSE: Why doesn’t it appear from your CV that has been provided to the 
Commission? 
MS MTWANA: The employment part it’s still VPUU but we are assisting the line departments 
in mainstreaming the VPUU approach so we have been contracted to work within the City. I 
have always been working with – on the consultancy side of VPUU. 
MR ARENDSE: The reason why I ask Madam Chair is you will recall that initially when Ms 
Mtwana was scheduled to testify there was a bit of, her testimony was then deferred because 
the City of Cape Town had objected at the time to her testifying given the employment 
relationship they have with the City of Cape Town. 
COMMISSIONER: Could you just clarify that are you employed by the City or are you 
employed by VPUU who is your employment contract with, do you know? 
MS MTWANA: The arrangement Your Honour that in VPUU there’s VPUU as a project that is 



a partnership between the German Development Bank and the City of Cape Town. 
COMMISSIONER: Yes. 
MS MTWANA: The unit VPUU even if we, my conditions of employment are guided by the City 
of Cape Town that is responsible for the payment of our salaries for the work that we are 
doing.  But the issues of administration, management, programming, resourcing and all that it’s 
the VPUU and that is why there is no clear line whether I’m a City 100% employee but we are 
VPUU City of Cape Town project, it’s a project it’s not a line department. 
COMMISSIONER: Your line, that’s right your line manager is within VPUU. 
MS MTWANA: Yes. 
COMMISSIONER: Okay we’ve got some clarity there Mr Arendse. 
MR HATHORN: Commissioner sorry if I can just butt in here I think Mr Arendse has not quite 
correctly stated the position with regard to the City’s stance to Ms Mtwana giving evidence. 
They didn’t object there were just concerns raised about the implications of what Ms Mtwana 
might say whether that would prejudice the City and the way that the City would respond to 
that.  So there was no formal objection there was a just a need to clarify exactly how the giving 
of evidence would play out. 
COMMISSIONER: I see Mr Katz you are sitting there is there anything you want to add to this 
conversation? 
MR KATZ:  Yes, I’m sorry I did walk out just as Mr Arendse was cross-examining on that 
aspect but as we recall the situation the City certainly had no objection to the witness testifying 
before the Commission.  The concern was at the time that we didn’t know what she was going 
to, the City didn’t know what she was going to say and there was a concern that she may say 
certain things which may not have been in her interest.  We encouraged any City employee to 
give evidence but it wasn’t to be seen as on behalf of the City so that was the concern but we 
certainly had no objection to it at all. There was some confusion as to the City’s stance in that 
respect which I think Ms Matthee(?) who is sitting next to me I cleared up with the witness at 
the Commission’s – at the coffee shop up the road. 
COMMISSIONER: Thank you.  Advocate Arendse? 
MR ARENDSE: No I don’t want to make much of it but I mean she was clearly stopped from 
testifying in the first place then we met and it was clarified and I… 
COMMISSIONER: I think in a forward looking Commission the point is Ms Mtwana is here, her 
evidence is extremely helpful and we should be focusing on that. 
MR ARENDSE: Thank you.  Ms Mtwana the evidence of Mr Giles was also that the VPUU 
project aims to prevent violence and crime and its working model has five components.  Which 
particular component are you testifying in relation to when you make your recommendations? 
MS MTWANA: Your Honour the component that we are testifying on is that of social crime 
prevention within the VPUU methodology. 
MR ARENDSE: Okay but that only involves the establishment of neighbourhood watches 
according to Mr Giles. 
MS MTWANA: The social crime prevention component has got my part that is called “safety 
and volunteer coordination” the safety part is for me to work with relevant stakeholders in 
establishing implementable safety plans that are going to be ensuring that the communities 
feel safe so that is the component where I’m coming from.  It is not necessarily working with 
neighbourhood watches only I work with SAPS, Metro police, I work with other law 
enforcement agencies depending on general safety issues and in that we are working at 
strengthening the community safety forums  which are the coordinating structures that will 



have ultimate responsibility of monitoring, coordinating and supporting the neighbourhood 
watches.  It is but…(intervention) 
MR ARENDSE: I’m asking that because when the VPUU was established it formed 
partnerships only with the City of Cape Town and the Khayelitsha Development Forum and not 
with the police is that right? 
MS MTWANA: That was the initiation of the project that dates back to 2002 when the concept 
was that but I’m not in a position to answer such questions at this point in time the team 
leaders would be the ones ideal to answer that.  What I can say is that when we are talking 
about the partnerships that have been evolving, initially it was with the City of Cape Town 
exclusively and whilst working on the conceptualisation of the VPUU methodology it became 
evident that we cannot work without the SAPS, we cannot work without the Department of 
Community Safety which is a provincial department.  The project is evolving and is also 
working at some other point with national departments so they are the best people to answer 
these questions and give more detail and meat to it. 
MR ARENDSE: You see the reason why I ask that is again because it certainly was not – and 
it may be the case that he testified orally about it – but if I look at Mr Giles’ affidavit then again 
the partnership, he says in paragraph 7 of his affidavit which was attested to earlier this year:  

“Current programs and partnerships include the following; safety volunteers, 
neighbourhood watch and facility guardians, Social Development Fund, social 
community-driven projects and small infrastructure projects, the University of 
Western Cape Legal Aid Training, (indistinct) Training Service and healing centre 
for women.  Sikhulo Sonke ECD and then Heads Up (brain injury and alcohol 
related harm reduction)”.   

And then he says: 
“We also have strategic partnerships with a number of provincial and City line 
departments as well as several civic or NGO organisations”. 

No mention of the police. 
MR HATHORN: Commissioner can I request that Mr Arendse confine his cross-examination to 
Ms Mtwana’s evidence it seems no constructive purpose is served by having her cross-
examined about Mr Giles’ affidavit. 
COMMISSIONER: Any comments on that Mr Arendse? 
MR ARENDSE: I can’t see why I can’t put to a witness who is testifying on behalf of VPUU on 
what the project leader Mr Giles testified to what’s in his affidavit that he said earlier. 
COMMISSIONER: It seems to me though Mr Arendse it’s a little bit like asking one of the 
branch commanders at one of your client’s police stations to testify about national policy it 
really is complicated. I think what Ms Mtwana said she just can’t comment on this, this is not 
her job description she’s not involved in governance so I think it’s not fair to put to the witness 
questions she can’t answer but if you could formulate your questions given what she has 
indicated as her line responsibility which is dealing with safety and volunteer coordination 
within the social crime prevention.  In my understanding the focus of her recommendations are 
really looking at the role of CPFs and looking at station level issues around safety and 
volunteer coordination. 
MR ARENDSE: I think firstly, with respect Madam Chair, this is not like asking a station 
commander about national, Mr Giles testified about his experience in Khayelitsha as a clinical 
psychologist.  Secondly, what I’m putting to the witness by reading back to her what Mr Giles 
says in his affidavit is that this is their mandate it does not involve the police, it does not involve 



CPS.  Now I can understand and I’m not going to take issue with Ms Mtwana that this is how 
the project evolved because it seems to me to make sense that if you are concerned about the 
safety of residents in Khayelitsha then you must involve the police.  What I’m putting to her by 
reading back Mr Giles’ affidavit is that that certainly was not their mandate certainly from the 
outset and by the time Mr Giles testified, and again it may have been in his oral testimony, but 
that was not their mandate by operating here in Khayelitsha. 
MS MAYOSI: Madam Chair if I may assist, based on what Ms Mtwana herself said in her 
affidavit on this issue she mentioned at paragraph 5 of her affidavit… 
COMMISSIONER: Are we now talking about the first phase? 
MS MAYOSI: Yes. 
COMMISSIONER: Yes. 
MS MAYOSI: About this issue of mandates and one of the things she says in paragraph 5 is 
that “at VPUU we work within the informal policing system” she then continues to say that “the 
important role players apart from SAPS are the CPFs, the neighbourhood watches, the street 
committees and the City of Cape Town Safety and Security Directorate”.  So this issue of 
which players are relevant and their mandate has been clarified by her in her affidavit quite 
apart from whatever Mr Chris Giles may have said. 
COMMISSIONER: Our view is that you shouldn’t question this witness on the evidence of Mr 
Giles but on her evidence alone Mr Arendse and I’d be grateful if you’d observe that ruling. 
MR ARENDSE: Mr Mtwana so given the questions that I’ve put to you isn’t it the case that your 
relationship as VPUU has really just evolved over time, maybe over the past year or two years 
where you have become involved with SAPS structures and in particular CPFs is that right? 
MS MTWANA: Your Honour right from the beginning of the project implementation phase 
which was in 2006 where we conducted baseline surveys the police were involved at that 
stage as part of the participants as well as part of the important role players or stakeholders.  
Then as the years were going by we were forming formal and informal relationships at different 
policing levels.  So for me I’ve always seen VPUU working hand-in-hand with the police, we 
have been engaging with them at different levels where general safety issues were discussed 
and implementation plans were discussed and different requests made by either SAPS to 
VPUU or VPUU making requests to SAPS.  I have always felt that we are working as partners 
and we are working as critical role players in the implementation of the project. 
MR ARENDSE: So do you acknowledge and accept that CPFs have been established for each 
of the three Khayelitsha police stations? 
MS MTWANA: Yes Your Honour I’m quite knowledgeable about them. 
MR ARENDSE: And that you collaborate with them. 
MS MTWANA: Yes I’m working with them. 
MR ARENDSE: And that the designated police officer would be the station commander or 
someone designated by the station commander to, like in the case of Lingelethu West I think 
you indicated that a liaison officer had been appointed to liaise between you and the police. 
MS MTWANA: Yes I’m knowledgeable about how the CPFs have to be formed and how they 
operate and the legal frameworks that are guiding the establishment of the CPFs. 
MR ARENDSE: Do you also operate in the various sectors in the broader Khayelitsha or within 
the three precincts of Harare, Lingelethu West and Site B? 
MS MTWANA: VPUU being, having come into Khayelitsha and started with specific pilot areas 
we somehow are working in all three police stations but restricted to those areas identified in 
terms of the program which we call “safe node areas”.  Harare is the one example where we 



are working in the, in Monwabisi Park, Harare as well as Kuyasa.  Harare, Kuyasa and 
Monwabisi Park are designated safe node areas so we are working with Harare police station.  
In Lingelethu, our engagement with Lingelethu SAPS was because of the work that was to be 
done in the safe node area which is a part of one sector which is TR Section and with the 
Khayelitsha police station in Site B we have been working in Site C as well as BM Section 
there were those designated pockets within the police precincts.   

Having worked on that we have also recognised that we will not only be concentrating 
on those identified or designated safe node areas when it comes to supporting the CPFs that 
cover the whole police precinct so we have been working with them in all the sectors in terms 
of Harare and we have just started re-engaging with Khayelitsha to include other areas 
besides the prescribed safe node area.  So we are currently working with all of them which is 
why we have developed a relationship and communication with the cluster SAPS commander 
as well as the cluster CPF chairperson in order for us to lend whatever support that can be 
identified.  But our contractual obligations are in the specific safe node areas that I’ve 
mentioned in actual delivery. 
MR ARENDSE: So it sounds to me that you’re satisfied with the levels of cooperation with 
SAPS and there appears to be from what I gather a good working relationship and that this is 
work in progress is that right? 
MS MTWANA: I am not saying that there is no working relationship, at different points in our 
engagement and in our delivery of programs the levels of good working relationships and 
cooperation differ there are areas that need a lot of improvement.  What we are doing as a 
project we have not been concentrating on judging the performance of the police but we are 
looking at those areas where we have submitted requests, are we meeting each other halfway 
in terms of delivery of that particular intervention.  Problems that emerge where there is lack of 
cooperation that affects any services that have to be or that get raised through reporting to the 
station commissioner that we are not getting joy in terms of response times, in terms of crime 
that gets committed in point A and B.  It depends on that particular station whether to respond 
positively by saying that okay we will call a meeting so it is, there is a relationship it can work if 
we can all – I mean we as VPUU and other components can work out ways and means of 
communicating what our plans are and (indistinct) what is common focus for all of us, defining 
roles and responsibilities.  But the most important for us which is of concern is the levels of 
accountability, we need to set up systems whereby even VPUU should be accounting for 
services delivered.  We need to see a coordinated and integrated system where we have to 
say SAPS is coming to the party they are doing their part VPUU, DOCS and any other service 
provider are doing their own part in order for us to say that the relationship is completely good.  
What I can say for lack of a better English word the relationship is amicable, it needs to be 
amicable as well as to a very good one in order to ensure that services get delivered  to the 
broader citizenry that is serviced in terms of safety and security. 
MR ARENDSE: You answered Advocate Sidaki you say you are quite happy to adopt the 
safety plan, the model that is proposed by Barbara Holtman so in that plan all these things 
should come together if everybody is committed to the plan. 
MS MTWANA: Yes everybody will come together, you know as I was saying that I’ve been 
fortunate in the sense that right from the brainstorming session that Ms Barbara Holtman has 
been conducting and all the processes and the safety plans that she has compiled were 
developed for Khayelitsha all indicate a collaborative and a coordinated intervention with 
everybody having a part to play and also ensuring that there is accountability in terms of what 



gets… Fortunately she is the expert on the document but her model is what we are all aspiring 
to we have taken some parts from the model in order to localise that in order to get local plans 
fitting into the bigger precinct plans in order for us to see delivery. 
COMMISSIONER: Mr Arendse…(intervention) 
MR ARENDSE: Ms Mtwana I do want to… 
COMMISSIONER: Mr Arendse we can give you a little bit of extra time because of the debate 
about Mr Giles but if you could please finish by 10:30. 
MR ARENDSE: I want to but I would also request that the witness perhaps just answer my 
question.  The last question I  have is what role does the DOCS Expanded Partnership 
Program have in your recommendations, do they have a role to play there, they fund the CPFs 
through a funding model you’re aware of that? 
MS MTWANA: Yes I am aware Your Honour. 
MR ARENDSE: I speak subject to correction but I don’t particularly see you, I know that you 
allocate a role to DOCS or to the Provincial Government and I agree once you buy into the 
Holtman model then they’re a stakeholder as much as you are and everyone else but I don’t 
see you specifically mention the EPP as to what role or function it has in that partnership. 
MS MTWANA: Currently we are completing the signing of a memorandum of understanding 
where the VPUU methodology of incident reporting will be linked to the EPP processes where 
we are going to be working with the CPFs and ensuring that what is contained in the EPP and 
falls under the brief of the work of VPUU will be consolidated with that.  So we are having that 
memorandum of understanding in final stages which makes us all to work together. 
MR ARENDSE: Thank you. 
NO FURTHER QUESTIONS BY MR ARENDSE 
COMMISSIONER: Thank you Mr Arendse, any re-examination Ms Mayosi? 
MS MAYOSI: No I have no questions Madam Chair. 
NO RE-EXAMINATION BY MS MAYOSI 
COMMISSIONER: Thank you once again Ms Mtwana for your very helpful testimony and we 
wish you well with the very important work that you are undertaking in Khayelitsha we’re very 
grateful that we’ve had two opportunities to hear from your expertise. 
MS MTWANA: Thank you very much Your Honour. 
COMMISSIONER: You may now stand down, thank you. 
MS MTWANA: Yes. 

 


